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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING H B.V.
Amgterdam

Repaort of the board of Mansging Directors

In sccordance will the Articles of Association of ERB New Eurepe Funding 11 B.V., the menagement herewith submits the Armual
Report of ERB New Europe Funding 11 B.V. (the Company) for Ihe year ended 31 Degember 2015,

Key Activities

ERB New Europe Funding 11 B.V. (the Company) was incorporated on April 24, 2008 and has its registered and office address at
Herengracht 500, 1017 CB, Amsterdam, The Netherands. The Company is incorporated in The Netherlands and is vholly owned by
ERB New Curope Holding B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of Eurobank Ergasias §.A. in Greece. On November 15, 2012 the
Company changed its name 1o ERB New Europe Funding Il BV, {former name: EFG New Europe Funding ITB.V.).

The key activities of the Company are o invest in loans gramied to Romanian cuslomers (originated by the Eurebank Ergasias S.A.) in
Romania. All loans and advances to customers are existing loans to Romanian customers acquired from the group Comparty Bancpost
S.A. The Company itself is funded directly by Eurabank Cyprus Lid, in Cyprus.

Position of Eurebank Group

Macroeconomic environment

In 2015, the macroeconomic environment in Greece has been very challenging for the Greek banking gystem. n the first half of the
year, the prolanged uncertainty relating to an agreement with the Eurozone partriers over the implementation of the required reforms
for the conclusion of the Second Economic Adjustment Program, the umsuccessful expiration of the former, the tighteriet! liguidity
conditions due to the finenging problems of the Greek State and the significant deposit outflows - already sbserved from late 2074 —
led to the imposition of restrictions in banking Iransactions (sapital controls) together with a temporary bank holiday on 28 June 2013,
In mid - Angust the Greek Government reached a final agreement with its European partrers o a new 3-year European Stability
Mechanism (ESM} program - the Third Economic Adjustment Program {TEAP) - wilh a ca € 86 bn financing envelope and & series of
reforms miming to restore fiscal sustainability, safeguard financial stability, enhance growth, competitivensss and investrment and
develop & modem state and public administration. The Gresk Government managed to complete two sets of prior actions from the
prograrn at the end of November and Degember 2013, By mid - December 2015, the systemic banks® recapitatization was completed
with only ca € 5.4 bn used from the initial buffer of up to € 25 bn. The unused funds were subiracted from the ESM loan, reducing it to
ca € 64.5 bn as ol the end of January 2016.

In the first months of 2016, the macroeconomic environment in Greece has remained challenging for the Greek banking system.
Following the ongoing negotiations with ks European partners during the lasi months; Greece has suceegsfully concluded the 1st
review ol the Third Economic Adjustment Program (TEAP), which permitted the disbursement of the first substranche of € 7.5 bn from
the second installment of the Furopean Stability Mechanism (ESM) Ioan on 21 June 2016, allowing the country 1o cover its debt
servicing needs and clear a part of the State’s arrears to the private sector. Aceordingly, the European Centsal Bank (ECB) decided the
reinstatement of the waiver for the insttuments issued by the Hellenic Republic and the improvement of the advance rates for providing
Eurosystem financing with Pillar ] guarantees as collaters), while the participation of Greek Government Bandy in ECB’s Quantitative
Easing (QF) program will be examined at a later stage conditional on the implementation of the 2nd review and the resulis of the Debt
Sustainability Analysis that the ECB is expected to conduct after the implementation of the shont term debt rehict measures for Greece.
The latter are in accordance with the roadmap of debt relief agreed in the 25 May 2016 Eurogroup. The completion of the 15t review
helped in reducing the short term uncerminty surmounding the economic outiock and contributed to further selaxation of capital
controls, as of 22 July 2016, This, elong with the mobilization of European Union (EU) funding to support domestic investment ard
jab creation and the decisive implementation of the reforms agreed in the context of the ESM program, would facilitate the restoration
of confidence in the prospects of the Greek economy and the further stabilization of the domestic environment, which are necessary
conditions for the resumption of positive economic growth,
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING H B.V,

Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Fositien of Eurohank Group (continued)

Currently, the main risks and uncertaintias are associated with &) the impact on the level of cconomic artivity from additional fiscal
measures included in the key prior actions of the st review of the TEAP, b) possible delays in the implementation of the reforms’
agenda in order ta meet the next targets and milestones of the TEAP including the timely completion of the 2nd review scheduled for
carly December 2016, ¢} the timing of a full lift of restrictions i the free movement of capital and the respective intpact on the level of
economic activity , d) a possible deterioration of the refugee crisis and the impact on the internel economy and ¢) the geopalitical
conditions in the broader region and the oxtemal shocks from & slowdown in the global economy.

Liquidity risk

In accordance with the agreemient with the European partners, the suthorities ars committed 10 preserving sutficient liquidity in the
banking system, as long as Greoce meets its obligations under the ESM program. The decisive implementation of the measures agreed
in the context of the new ESM program permitted ECB 10 reinstate the waiver for the istruments issued by the Helleni¢ Republic and
decrease the haircuts applied for Piilar I puarantees. These developments have enabled Greek banks ta reduce their dependence on the
expensive Emergency Liquidity Assistance (ELA) mechanism and incresse their liquidity buffers. The stabilization of the
macroecenonic environment and a recovery of the domestic economic sentiment will facititate a faster return of deposits in the
banking system and the further re-access to the markets for liquidity.

In the first nine months of 2016, Eurobank Ergasias S.A. ( the “Bank™) has managed to reduce its dependence on Eurosystem funding
mainly through the increase in repo transactions in the interbank markel, the selective assets deleveraging, the utilization of a part of
foreign subsidiaries' surplug liquidity and to some extent by deposit inflows.

Salvency risk

On 31 October 2015, the ECB announced the results of the comprehensive asgessment (CA) based on which, a sherifall of € 0.3 ba in
baseline scenario against 9.5% Common Equity Tier | (CET1) threshoid and € 2.1 bn in adverse sgenario against 8% CET1 threshold,
the lowest shortfall acrass Greak banks, was identified for the Bank. Following the CA results and in line with the new recapitatization
framework introduced by Law 434072015, the Bank proceeded to a capital increase of € 2,039 miltion, which was covered exclusively
from the markess. As a result, the Group strengthened further its capital base and its CET] ratio stood at 17% at the end of December
2015

Notwithstanding the direct and indirect exposure of the banking system to sovereign risk, the succeszful completion of the Bank’s and
other Greek systemic banks’ recapitalization process constituted a key milestone for rebuilding trust in the banking system and tn the
economy in general.

The Group continues implementing its medium termt Internst capital generating plan, which includes initiatives generating or releasing
CET1 capilal and/or reducing risk weighted agsets, One of the key areas of facus remains the active management of non-performing
ipans, taking advantage of the Group’s intemal infrastructure and the important legislative changes that have taken or are oxpeoted to
take place, aiming to substantially reduce their stock in due course. The Group's Comman Equity Tier 1 {CET1) ratio stood at 17% at
the end of June 2016 and the net prafil attributable to sharehoiders amounted to € 106 million for the period ended 30 June 2016.

I'he Board of Directors, laking into consideration the ahove factors relating to the adequacy of the Group's capital pasition and its
anticipated coptinued aceess to Eurosystem funding over the foreseeable futare, and despite the existing unceriainties relating to the
macroeconomic environment in Greece, has been satisfied that the financial statements of the Company can be prepered on & going
concem basis.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING H B,V,

Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Credit Rating of Eurobank Group

The parent company’s (Eurobank Ergasias Group) long term rating was ‘CCC+ at July 2016 (2015 8D, 2014: CCCO+} agcording (o the
Standard & Poor's credit rating,

Result

In the current financial year the Company recorded a profit of EUR 402,535 (2014: profit of EUR 1,755,162 which is set out in detail
in the atlached Income Statement,

Risk Management

The Managing Board utilizes # nsk management policy and receives regular reports o enable prompt identification of financial risk so
that appropiate actions may he taken The Company employs written policy and procedures that sets out specific guidelines to manage
loreign exchange risk, interes! rate risk, credit risk and the use of financial instrurments 10 manage these.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Company if & customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contraclual obligations, and arises principally from the loans and advances to customers. Far credit risk management reporling
purposes, the Company considers and consolidates all ¢lements of credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor risk, sector risk,
repayment risk, etc.. For & further analysis we refer 1o nofe 5.1 in the Notes (o the Balange Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive
income of this repatt.

Market risk

The Company takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all
of which are exposed to general and specific movements and changes In the tevel of volatility of market rutes of prices such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Interest rate risk

The risk that future cash flows of a financiet instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes in market interest rates. Loan assets and [oan
linbilities are undertaken back (o back on terms that both relate to the same variable Euribor or Libor rate. The risk is fulty
compensated by this balance and heace there is no sensitivity risk (o a change in interest rate.

Forelgn exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that assets or labilities in foreign currencies will fluctuate in vahe due 1o exchange rate fluciuations.
Loan assets and loen liabilities are undertaken back to back in the identical currencies.

Outloek

The Company will continue operating in the same manner and maintaining existing portfolic of clients. No significant new business
and relationship are planned for 2016. Funding of the Company will remain thie same and under the same terms. Capital base of the
Company is adequate and no increase is needed. No investments are planned either in human resources or in any other area,
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING Il B.V,

Anixtardam

Report of the bosrd of Manugiog Directors

Post balance sheet events

Legislation on the convervion of CIT denaminsted loans to R ian Lei

On L& October 2016, the Rowmaniss parliament unanimously passed a bill that alows borrowers to convert Swits frum-denominatud
1oans (nto loeal currency “Lew' using e exchungs rats prevalling on {lis dale they werw orlginated. Tha shove law provislon he not
come fnto Roree yet, The Remsnisn Cortirutional Court {RCC) is currently teviewing ils consitutionality, following the selovant
request by the gavernment und the duic for suing the desision had boen mstablisied for 23 Navember 2016 and subsequently
postponcd to 16 Janusry 2017, Eurcbank Group uwails the devisions and the reasening of the RCC and reserves Jis right & essess the
legal possibility to seok 10 the wupranational Eusopeas Count of Juslice,

Romanian Legislation on the dischargs of dabt obligations {‘Datin in Solutum')

Tn Msy 2016, Law T22016 on the discharge of dobt cbligstions (*Dstio in Solutun') care into force in Romenle. Tn particular, the
ssid fsw providex for the discharge in Ul and under corialn preconditions of the buans contmelod by individisls ond secursd by
MOHEREE sTAngenEnls by ‘piymetl n king' through the wenfer of the mortgaged property.

According i the press relansus lgsusd by tha Rewnanlas Cosstituional Court {RCC), an 25 Oclober 2016 the RCC deoided that certein
provisions of the lsw are sgainat the Constitution, The decisivns of RCC {ncluding the fag) sre cagenied to by publinked in ha
Official Geeetts of Romamde, and Eurobsnk Group pwails the docisions sl the reusoning of tha RCC and ressrven ta right to ss05e
the tegal possibility to xesk recourss to the supranational Burapsen Caurt of Justics,

Sub-perticipation agreement hotween Bancpost S.A., shd ERB New Europe Furding T B.V.
On 08.09.2016 snd 26.04.20t6, two Suh-participation sgreements wore signed botween Bancpost S.A, und ERB Now Eutope Funding
U BV, for lon’ postfalic originsied by Bancpost §.A., totafly amouatiag to EUR 55 mil.

Above mentioned post balerice sheet events do not alfect the nancief position of the Company as A 3£:12.2015.

Future Develapments

Eurobank Ergasies §,A, it the sale sherehaldsr of ERB New Europe Holding B.V, (ihe immodinic pacent and conirokiing sntity of the
Company), Further snd on the basiz of tha snalysis of the Company's profitability, espitaltation sod funding strusture, the Directorns
are satizfisd that (e Company has sdequale resources (o continue in Busi for the for ble future,

Composition of the board

The size and composition of the Bosrd of Menaging Direstors and-the combined cxpierience and cxpettise ghould voflasr e hegs f for
profiis and strsiegy of the Company, Ct 1y ol! Four mesmbers of lhe Boird so mals, The Compsny Is aware $hat the gender diversity
is below \he goals &y sot out [n snticle 2:276 section 2 of the Lhutch Civil Code and the Company wilf pay close attention to yonder
diversity in the process of reccuiting and appoinling new Mansging Dircclors,

As per August 17, 2015, Mr, 5. van dor Maer and Mr. MA-H. Manis heve resigned 33 managing direstars of the Campeny, and a5 per
sare date Mr. LR, Janssens and Mr, R. Wemmi have besn appuinted 3¢ menaging ditectors of the Compsny.

Amsterdam, Jenuary 31, 2017

The Bdyrd of Munaging Directors,

E.R. Janssens : ™ R. Wemumi

T e g et

~
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II1 B.V,

Balence Sheet as at December 31, 2018
(amounts in EUR, aficr appropriation of resulfs)

ASSETS
Notes 31/12/2018 31/12/2014

Non-Current Assets

Loans & advances t0 customers 7 285:295,502 327345483
Current Assets

Loans & advances to customers 7 50.563.490 41,455.896

Other recgivables 8 1.371.482 54,167.208

Income tex receivable 17 458213 478,219

Cash and gash equivalents 9 6.244.566 7.862.730
TOTAL ASSETS 343.933.253 431.309.536

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to equity hoiders of the company

Issued and paid-up capital 10 20.000 20.000
Share premium 10 11.980.000 11.980.000
Accumutated profils 10 5.283.424 5.880.889

18.283.424 17.880.889

Current Liabilities

Borrowings fror group company 1t 322.304.358 409.6406,838
Interest payable Lo group company 12 174.221 1,565,558
Other payables 13 3.171:250 2216251
325.649.829 413.428.647

TOTAL EQUITY AND L1ABILITIES 343.933.253 431.309.536

The notes to the accounls on pages 10 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Income Statement
for the financial year eaded December 31, 2615
{amouxnts in EUR)
Notes  0101-31/122015  D1/01-31/12/2014
Finaneial income and expenses
Interest income 14 22.376.518 26,862,396
Interest expense 15 (21.935.8406) (26.199.849)
440,672 662.547
Provision charge for impairment of loans T - -
Other operating income 2.030.123 1.757.84%
Operating income/(loss} 2470.794 2420388
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (1.458,837) {185.999)
Qperating costs 16 (572.128) (414.823)
Profit / {loss) before taxation 439.829 1.819.566
Corporale income tax 17 (37.294) (64:404)
Profit / (loss) after taxation 402.535 1.755.162

‘The netes 1o the accounts on pages 10 to 32 form an integral part of these financial siatements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Statement of comprehenslye income
for the financial year ended December 31, 2615
{amounts in EUR)

Notes  01/0131/12/2015  01/01-31/12/2014

Net result sfter taxation 402.53% 1,788,162
Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income for the yesr, net of tax - -

Fotal compreheasive income for the year 402,535 1.755,162

"The notes to the accotinis on pages 10 to 32 form an integral pant of these financial statemonis
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING H B.V.

Cash Flow Statement
for the financial year ended December 31,2015

{amounts in EUR)
Notes 2015
Cash flows from operating uctivities:
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 439.829
Adjustments for:
Interest income 4 (22.376.518)
Interest expenses 15 21.935.846
(843)
Net decrease/ (increase) in loans & advances 29924267
Net decrease/ (increase) in other receivables 52.795.725
Net decrease/ (increase) in other payables 954,999
Cash generated from operations 83.674.088
Income taxes paid 17 (17.288)
Interest received 25.394.698
Interest paid (23.327.183)
85724315
et cash from operafion activities: 85.724.315
Cast flows from flngneing activities:
Increase in borrowings from group company -
Repayment of borrowings from group company 11 (87.342.480)
Nei cash used in financing acfivities (87342 480)

Net (Deocrease) / Increase in ¢ash and cash equivalents 9

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ¢
Cagh and cash equivalents st the end of the year 2

Cash flow from inveatiog activities:

(1.618.165)

6244566

During the financia! year 2015 there were no investing activities in the Compeny.

The nates to the accounts on pages 10 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements
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2014

1.819.566

{26.862.396)
26.199,84%
1.157.019
80.968.958
(54.012.573)
(265.813)
36.847.591
(207.708)
33.342.756

(25.717.321)
44,265,318

44.265.318

1.671.041

(50.527.892)
(43.856.851)

(4.991.533)

12.454.263

7.862,730



ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V,

for the financial year ended December 31, 2015

EQUITY

Statement of ehraunges in equity

(amounts in EUR)

‘The movementz in EUR in the year under review can be summarized as follows:

Balance as at Jaouary 1, 2814

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive [ncome for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2014

Balance as st January 1, 2018

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Batance as at December 31, 2015

Attributable to owners of the parent

issned and Share Acenmulated
paid~up capital premium profily Totil
20,0800 11.980.000 4.125.727 16.125,727
- - 1.755.162 1.755.162
- - 1,755.162 1.755.162
20,800 11.59806.080 5.880.889 17.880.889
20.000 11.980.000 5.880.889 17.880.889
- - 402.535 402:535
- - 402,535 402.835
20.800 11.980.000 6.283.424 18,283,424

The notes to the accounts on pages 10 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 1 BV,

Notes to the Kinancisl Statements os at December 31, 2015
(amounts in EUR)

GENERAL

ERB New Europe Funding 11 B.Y. (the Company) was incorporated on April 24, 2008 and has its registered and office address st Herengracht 500, 1017 CB,
Amsterdam, the Netherlands The Company is incorporated in The Netherlands and is whelly owned by ERB New Europe Holding B.V,, 3 wholly owned subsidiary of
FEurobank Ergasias S.A. in Gresce. The Company’s Chamber of Commeree number is 34300657,

In November 2015, following the completion of the Bank’s share capital inereage, fully covered by investors, ingiilulional and oihers the pereentage of the Bank's
ordinary shares with voting rights held by the HFSF decreased from 335,41% to 2.18%.

Despite the aforementioned significam d of its p tage, the HFSF is still considered ta have signilicant influence over the Dank. In particular, in the context of
the Law 386472010, as in forve, HFSF exercises ils voting rights in the Bank's General Assembly only for decistons conceming the amendment of the. Bank’s Aniicles of
Association, including the increase or decrease of the Bank’s capital or the granting of a carrespanding authorization to the Bank's Board, decisions concering the
mergers, divisions, conversians, revivals, extension of duration or dissolution of the Bank, the transfer of assefs, or any ollier issue requiting approval by an incressed
majority as provided for in Company Law 2190/1920. In addition, the Bank has entered irto a new Relalionship Framework Agreement (RFA) with the HFSF en 4
December 2015 replacing the previous one, sigred on 26 August 2014,

The key activity of the Company s to invest in granted loans to Romanian custoriess (originated by the Burcbank Ergasiss S.A. in Romania). All loang and sdvanees to
customers are aequired from the growp company Bancpost S.A. The Company itself is funded directly by Eurobank Cyprus Lid.

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issua by the Board of Managing Directors on January 31, 2017,

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal aceounting policies adoptad in the preparation of these financial statements are set ouf below:
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Infemational Financial Reporting Stondards (IFRS) issued by the JASB, as endorsed by the Earopean
Union (EU), and in particular with thase 1FRSs and IFRIC inlerpreiations issued and effective or issued and early adopted as &l the Hme of preparing these staterients.
These financial sutements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and an ongoing coineem basts.

The policies set out below have been consistently applied 1o the years 2015 and 2014, Where necessary, comparalive fipures have been adjusled to conform with changes
in presentation in the current year.

The preparation of finaneial statements in conformity with 1FRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect (he reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabifities at the date of the financial statements and the reported smounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting peniod. Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowiedge of current events and actions, schusl resulis ultimately may differ from those estimates,

{8} The [ollawing amendments to standards and rew interpretations, as {2sued by the International Accounting Standards Board (TASB) and the TFRS. Inferpretations
Commitiee {IC) and endorsed by the European Union (EU), apply from | January 2015:

Annual Improvements to 1FRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments introduce key changes to thres IFRSs, following the publication of the results of the IASE’s 201212 cyele of the annual improvements projes, as
follows:

+ Clarify that IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ does nol apply to the aceounting for the formation of 4 joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangemeril itself;

* Clarify that the exception in IFRS 13 *Fair Value Measurement” for measuring the fair value of a group of finmneial assets and financial lizbilities on a net basis applies
to 8}l contracts within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39 ‘Financtal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ or [FRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’, regardiess of whether they meet the definitions of financisl assels or financial liabilities under 1AS 32 ‘Financial tnstnunenis; Presentation’;

+ Address the interrelationship between IFRS 3 *Business Combinations” and 1AS 40 “Investment Property”, elarifying in the lattet that an entify should assess whether: {a)
the acquired property is investment property under JAS 40 and (b) the acquisilion of investment property constitutes a business cormbination as defined in IFRS 3.

The adoption of the amendments had no impact on the Company's financiat statements

IFRIC 21, Levies

[FRIC 21 Levies clarifies that an entity recognizes a Jiability for a levy that is not income tax when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevanl
legislation, oecurs. It also clacifies that a levy lishility is accrued progressively only if the aettvity that triggers payment accurs over a period of time, in accordance with
the relevant legislation. For a Tevy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, For example a specified level of revenue, the interpretation clarifies that no lisbility
should be anticipated before the specified minimum treshold is reached,

The adoption of the interpretatien had no impact on the Cc y's financial stal

¥
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I1 B.V,

Notes to the Finaocial Stotements as at December 31, 2015
{smounts in EUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{b) A number of new standards and amendments to existing standards are effective afier 2015, as they have not yet heen endorsed by the Buropzan Union or have mot
been early applied by the Group. Those thal may by rélevant 1o the Company are set out below;

IAS 1, Amendment - Disclosure initiative (effective | Jonwary 2016)

Thz amendment elarifies guidance W 1AS | on materiality and aggregation, the presenlation of subotals, the structure of financial slatements and the disclosire of
accounting policies.

The adoption of the amendment is not expecied to impact the Company’s financial statements,

1A5 7, Ameadment — Disclosure Toitioélve (effective [ January 2017, not yet endorsed by EU)

The amendment requires disclosure of information enabling users of financia) st to evaluaty ch in liabilities anising from financing activities, including both
changes from cash flows and non-cash changes. The disclosure requirements also apply ta changes in financial assets, such as nssets thal hedge ligbililies anising from
financing acivitics, il cash flows from those financial assets were or future eash flows will be, included in cash flows from Anancing activities,

The adoption of the amendment is not expected to impact the Company®s financial statements.

TAS 12, Amendment - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (effective 1 January 2617, not e endorsed by EU)

The amendment clarifies that (a) unrealized losses on debt instnmmerds megsueed at fair valoe in the financial statements and at cost for tax purposes may give tise to a
deductible temporary difference imespective of whether the entity expeets 1o recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or use (b) estimates for future
taxable profits exclude Wx deductiony resuliing from the reversal of those deductible temparary differences (¢) the estimate of probable future taxable peofits may include
Lhe recovery of an asset for more than its carrying amount, if there is sufficient evidence that it is probable that (hig will be realized by the entity, and (d) a deferred tax
assel is assessed in combination with all of the other deferred tax assets whera (he tax law dogs not restrict the sources of taxable profits againgl which the entity may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary differences imay be reversed. Where restrictions apply, deferred tax assets are assessed in combination only
with other deferred tax assets of the same type

The adoption of the amendment is sot expected to impact the Company’s finanetal statements.

IAS 27, Amendment - Equity Methed in Separate Financial Statements {effective 1 January 2016)

This amendment allows entities 10 use the e¢quity method to agcount far investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their sey financial stat is and
clarifies the definition of separate financial statements. In particular, separate financinl statements are those presented in addifion to consalidated finaneial statements or m
addition to the financial statements of an investor that does nol have invesiments in sabsidiarfes but has investments in associates or joint venlures which are required by
{AS 28 Investmenis in Asgociates and Joint Ventures to be accounted for using the equity method.

The adoption of the amendment is not expected to impact the Company’s financial statements.

IFRS 9, Financial Instraments {effective [ January 2018, not yet endorsed by EU)

In July 2014, the LASB published the final version of IFRS 9 which replaces IAS 39 “Financial Insttuments’, [FRS 9 sets owt revised requirements on the cfassification
and measurements of financial assets, addresses the reporting of fair value changes in own debt when designated at fair value, replaces the existing incured Joss modet
used for the impairment of fmancizl assets with an expected credit loss model and incorporates changes 1o hedge accounting.

Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 applies one classification approach for all types of financial assets, aceording to which the classification and measurement of financial assets is based on the
entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assel, A business modef refers to how an entity
manages 15 financial assels so as Lo generate cash flows, by collecting contractual cash flows, ar selling tinancial assets or both. Upon assessmen!, each financial asset
will be classified in one of the Ihnee categories: amortized cos\, fair value (hrough profit or |6ss and fair value through other comprehensive income.

With regard (o fmaneial liabilities, the treatment followed in 1AS 39 {5 carmied forward fo IFRS 9 essentially unchanged. However, IFRS 9 requires fir vatue changes of
liabilities designated at fair value under the fair vatie option which ure aftributable 1o the change i the entity's own eredit risk 1o be presented in other comprehensive
income rather than in profit or loss, unless this would result in an accounting mismatch. The adoption of the amendment is nol expecled to impact the Company's financial
statemants,

Impsairment of fimancial assets

IFRS 9 introduces an expected credil loss model that will apply to all financial instrunyents that are subject to impaimment sccounting and replaces the incurred Joss imodel
in lAS 39 The new requirements eliminate the threshold in LAS 39 that required a credit event to have ocewred before eredit losses were recognized. Under IFRS 9, a
loss aflowance will be recognized for all financial assels, therefors the new requirements will result in the earlier recognition of eredit losees.

The new standard uses a ‘three stage approach' that will reflect changes in eredit quality since inilial recognition, Af each reporting date; a loss allowance equal to 12-
month expected credi losses will be recognized for afl financial assets for which ihere i no significant increase in credit rsk since initidl recopnition. For fmancial assels
thal have experienced 4 significant increase: in credit risk sinee initial recognition as well as purchased or esiginated credit impaired fivancial assets, & kagg alfowanse equal
to lifetime expected credit losses will be recognized, The measurement of expeoted credil losses will be a probability-weighted average amount that will reflect the time
value of money. In measuring expected credit losses, information aboul past events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions should be considered.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I1 B.Y,

Notes to the Fi ial Stat ts as at B ber 31, 2015
(amounts in HURY

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {rontinued)

Hedge accounting
IFRS % introduces a reformed mode! for hedge accounting, seeking to more closely slign hedge accounting with risk manngement activities 30 as 1o beuter refieer these
activitics {n the entities’ Anancial sialements, Under the new model, new hedge effectiveness requi ts apply, discontinuation of hedge accounting is allowed only

under spacific circumstlances, and a nuniber of items that were not eligible under IAS 39 as hedging instruments or hedged items are now eligible,
‘The Company is currently assessing the impact of the revised mode! for hedge accounting.

IFRS 10, FFRS 12 and IAS 28, Amendments - Jovestment Entities: Applying the Cansolidation Exception {effective 1 January 20186, not yet endarsed by EU)
Theso amendments ¢larify the application of the consolidation exception for investment entities and. their subsidiaries,
The adoption of the amendments is not expected to impact the Company’s tinancial statemems,

1FRS 10 snd 'AS 28, Amend ts - Sale or Cantvibution of Assets betwesn an lnvesfor and its Associute or Jolnt Venture (effective date to be determined by
TASB, net yet endorsed by EU)

These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements in IPRS 10 and [AS 28 dealing with the sate or contribution of asscts between an investor and its
associates or joiin ventires The main consequence of the amendments & that a full gain or less i recognized when a \ransaction involves 2 business, wherens a partial
gain or loss {3 recognized when a irangaction involves assets that do not sonstitute # business, even if these assels are in & subsidiary,

The adoption of the amendments is not expected 1o impact the Company’s fimancial statements.

IFRS t1, Amendment — Accounting for Acguisitions of Interests in Jeint Operations (effective 1 Janvary 2016}

This amendmen requires an investor to apply the principles of Business combination acvounting whew it scquires an {nlerest in & joing operation thal consiites &
“business’.

The adoption of Lhe amendment is not expected to impact the Company’s financial statements.

Annnal Imprevements to EFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (effective § Janusry 2816)

The amendiments introduce key changes 1o seven IFRSs foliowing the publicalion of the resufis of the TASB's 2010-12 cycle of the annun! improvemenis project. The
lopics addressed by these amendments are set oul below:

+ Definition of vesting canditjors in [FR8 2 'Share — based Paynient™;

= Accounting for contingent consideration in & business combination in IFRS 3 “Business Cormbinations;

« Aggregalion of operating segmennts and reconciliation of the total of the reponsble segments’ assets to the entity’s assets in JFRS § *Operating Segment”;
* Short-ferm receivables and payables in {FRS 13 *Fair Value Measurerment’;

» Revaluation method—proportionate restaterment of secumulated depreciation in TAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”;

- Key management personnel in IAS 24 *Related Party Disclosures™; and

* Revaluation method—proportionate restatement of accumulated amortization in [AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets”

The adoption of the amendruents is not expected to tmpact the Compenys financial statemants,

Aunusal Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (effective 1 January 2016)

The amendments introduce key changes to four IFRSs following the publication of (he resnlts of the LASB's 2012-14 cyele of the annval improvements project. The topics
addressed by these amendments are set out below:

» Clarifying in IFRS 5 *Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations' that, when arn asset (or disposal group) is reclassified from ‘held for sale” to *held for
distribution’, or vice versa, this does not constitute & change 1o a plan of sale or distribution, and does not have 10 be accounted for as sach.

+ Adding in IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’ specific guidance lo help management determine whether the terms of an arrangement to service a financial asset
which has been transferred constitute continuing involvernent. Tt slgo clarifies that the additional disclosure reguired by she amendments to IFRS 7, ‘Disclosure —
Offsetting financial assets and finanicial lfabilities” is not specifically required for all interim periods, uniess requited by T1AS 34,

+ Clasifying in [AS 19 ‘Employee benefits' hat, when determining fe discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations, it is the currency (hat the kiabilities are
denominated in that is important, and not the country where they arise.

» Clarifyuig in [AS 34 *Interim financial reporting’ what is meant by the reference in the standard to ‘information disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial report’.

The adoption of the amendments is not expected to impact the Company’s financial statemnents.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statemeats as at December 31, 2615
{amounts in EUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Going concern
The accompanying financial sistements have been prepared based on the going concem principle, which assumes thal the Company will continite to operate in the
foreseeable Ature, Tn order 1o assess (he reasonability of this assumption, the managetient reviews the forecasts of the fulure cash inflows,

The Company recorded financing only from refated parties, therefore, its going conceen depends of the future continuation of these relations.

The Board of Dircetors, taking info consideration fhe factars mentioned in the Repart of the board of Managing Directors, have been satisfied that the finanelal siatements
of the Company can be prepared on 4 going concem basis,

Functionnl and presentation curreney
The Company's presentation currency is the Euro (EUR) being the functianal carmency of the parent corpany,

Foreign currency

Transactions in fareign owrrencies are transtated into Euro at the foreign exchange rate-prevailing at the date of the wansaction, Maonetlary assets and labilitics stated in
foreign curencics at the balance sheet date are transtated into Euro at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at that date. Foreign exchange diffsrences arising on translation
are recognized in the Income Statement.

Non-monefary assets and lfabilities in foreign currencies, which are stated 4l historical cost, are translated info Euro at the foreign axchange rate prevailing ac the date of
Lhe transaction, in the Balance Sheet. Any resulling movement s also recogmized in the Income Siatement.

Tocome tax

Income tax on the profit ar loss for the year comprizes current tax, Current fax is the cxpeeted lax payable based on the taxable profit for the vear, using tax rates snacted
or substantially prevailing st the balence sheet date. Taxable profit may differ from profit as reported in the ncome Siatement becsiuge i excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it Rurther excludes items that are never taxable or deductible,

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, an temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carmying
amounts in the Anancial slatements.

Deterred income tax is deternined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantinlly enacted by the batance sheet date and are expecled 1o apply when the
related defenved income tax assets is reslized or the deferred income tax lisbilley is gettled.

Deferved income tax assets are recognized ta the oxtent that 1t ia probabile that fture taxable profit will be available against which the temparary diffefences can be
utilized.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial linbilities are recognized on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the
investment. As at December 31, 2015, the Company did not conelude any derivative contracts. A fivancial asset is derecognized when the contractus! cash flows of the
loan expire, or the Company transfers its rights ta receive those cash flows in an outright sale in which substantially ail the risk and rewards of ownership have been
transferred

Loans and recaivables

These represent Loans and Advances to customers, and are measured at initia) recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cosl using the
effective mterest rale method. Appropriate provisions for estimaled inecoverable amounts are recagnized in the Income Siatement when there is objective- evidence that
the assel 15 impaired

The nominal or cast value of the other receivables, which are not traded in active markets or far which no valuation techniques can be applied is assumed to approximate
their fair value.

Share capital

Share capital is equal 1o the nominal value of shares, respectively with to the vatue of capital contribution, of premium and incorporated reserves or other operalions
which lead to its modification, Subseribed and paid-in capital is recorded based on the articles of incorporation and on the supporting ducuments regarding capital paid-
in
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING IT B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statemcents as at Decernder 31, 2015
(amounts in EUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprize cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to 2 known amount af
cash and are sabjeet lo an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Impairment

For financia] assets that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss, the Company al each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial assef or 8 group of Bnancial assets is impaired and lmpairmem losses are incarred if there Is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more evenis thal occurred afler the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event”) and ihat loss evénl (or cvenis) has an mpact
on the estimated future cash flows of Lhe Anancial zsset or group of Fnancial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Impuairment indicators

For the Company's Retsil Joan exposures, objective evidence that a loan or group of loans is impaired includes vbservally dam that comes io the altention of the
Company about the following loss events;

(a) significant fmancial difficulty of the obligor, a significant reduction of personal andfor family income or loss of job;

{b) a default or breach of contracl:

(c) significant changes in the performance and behavior of the borrower (for example, a number of detayed contractual payments);

(d) messurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets through & nagative payment padern sueh as missed paymenis;

{€) the Company granting to the borrower, for econemic ar legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession (hat the Jender would not otherwise
cansider, such as a reduction of the obligors monthly instaliment for a specific period of time, or @ temporary or per { reduction of i rate;

(f) it is beeoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankrupley status or other finanvial reorganization;

{g) loss events that could aftect the ability of the barrawer to repay contractuel obligations within the agreed time, such os:
- serjous illness or disability of the obligor or a faniily member;

- death of the borrower;

For all other financial assets including corporate loan exposures, the Company assesses on a case- by-vase basis at each reporting date whether there s any abjective
evidence of impairment using the following criteria;

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligar;

{b) a defalt of breach of coniract;

(¢) sipnificant changes in the financial performance of the borrgwer that afteet the borrower's ability (o meet its debt  obligations, such as:

-operating losses,

-working capital deficiencies;

-the borrower having a nepative

{d) other facts indicafing 2 deterioration of the financial performance of the borrower, such as a breach of loan covenants or other terms, or a partial write-0ff in the
borrower's

obligations duz to economic or legal reasons relaling to his finaneial status;

{e) sigmficant changes in the value of Ihe coltateral supporting the obligation,

(b the Company granting lo the borrower, for ecanomic or legal reasons relating to the borrower™s finanvial difficulty, a concession that the Jender would not otherwise
zonsider, such as

a reduction of the obligors monthly installment for a specific period of ime; or a tempaorary or permanent reduation of interest rate;

{g) becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptey or other Anancial revrganization;

{h) significant adverse changes in the borrower's industry or geographical ares that could affect the borrower’s ability to meet ity debt abligations;

{i} markel related information including the status of the berrower's other debt obligations;

(i) & significant downgrade in the internal or external credit rating of the borrower’s financial instruments when considered with other information;
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING H B.V.

Notes to the Finsncial Statements as at December 31, 2015
(amowmts in BUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {eontinued)

Assers corried al amortized cost

Impairment assessmenl
The Company first assesses whelher objcctive evidenve of impairmenl exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or
vollectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. 1f the Company determines that no objeetive evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial assel, whether significant or na, it inelwdes the asset in & group of financial assets with similar oredit risk characteristics and, eollectively asgesses them for
impairment. Assels that are individually assessed for impaimment and for which an impairment loss {5 or continues 10 be recognized are not ingluded in a collective
assessment of impairment.

In determining whether a loan is individually significent for the purposes of assessing impainnent, the Company considers & number of factors, including the importance of
the individua! loan refationship and haw it is managed, the size of the loan, and the product line. Consequenily, foans 10 corporate clients and financial institutions as well
as investment seourilies, ere generally considered as individunlly significant. Retail lending porifolios are generally assessed for impaiment on 4 collective basis as they
consist of large homogenous porifolios, while exposures that are managed on an individual basis are assessed individualfy for frpainment.

‘The Company assesses at each balance sheel date whether there is an objective evidence of impairment.

Interest-bearing horrowings

Inleresi-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair valoe and subsequentty measured at amortized cost using the eflective interest method, Applying the effective
Ynterest method, the entity amortizes any fees, transaction cost and other premiums or discounts included in the calowlation of the effective iteras! rmte over the expicted
fife of the underlying liability. Any such amortization would be recopaized in the Tncome Siatement,

De-recopnition of financial Huhilities

A financial lizbility is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financisl tiability of the Company is
replaced by another from the same counterpasty on substantially différent terms, or €he terms of an existing liability are substantiolly modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated &s an extinguishment of the ocdginal fiability and the recognition of a new JHability. The difference in the respective carTying amounts is Tecognized
in the income statement.

‘The Company considers the terms to be snbstantially different, if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new tenms, including any fees paid net of any
foes received and discounted using the original effective interest male, is af leasl 10% different from the discounted présent vilue of the remaining cash fows of the
original financial liability,

Other payabies

Ofther payables are recognized initlally at fair vatue. The nominal or cosl value of the other payablos, which are not traded in aciive markets or for which no valuation
techniques can be applied is assumed (o approximate their fair vahie. Qtlier payables are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Other payable ame classified as current
liabitities, unless the Company has indisputable right to pastpane the seitlement of obligations for al least 12 months afler the balance sheet date.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I1 B.V.

Notes to the Financial Seat ts a3 at December 51, 2015
{amownts in EUR)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method. The presentation far the year 2015 kas not changed in comparison for the year 2014.

PRINCIPLES OF DETERMINATION OF RESULT

General

Result is determined as the difference between income generated by loans and the costs and other charges for the year. | from b iong is recognized in the year
in which it is cealized

Interest income and expenses
Inierest income and intersst expense are recoghized in the Income Statement for ali interest bearing financial instrumenty.

For all interest bearing financial instruments, interest income or interest oxpense i3 recognized using the effective interest tate, which s the rute that exgetly discounty
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the finanoial instnment or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the not carrying amount of the
financial asset or financia! lability (on an amoctised cost basis), The calvulstion includes sl contractual terms of the financial inytnment (for exampls, prepayment:
options) but iot fisture credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid of veceived between parties to tho contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, lransaction cosis and all other premiums or discounts,

Fees and Commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

Exchange rate differences

Exchange rale differences arising upan the setilement of monetary ftems ara recognized in the ProfitiLoss Accounl in the period (hat they cise.

Exchange rate differences on non-eurrent and non-Habilities loans are recognized in the Profit & Loss Account in the period they arise.

Taxation

Domestic corporate income fax is determined by applying Dutch fiscal practice rules and taking into t alfowable deductions, oharges and exemptions.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING H B.V.

Notes to the Financia) Sintements ss st December 31, 2015
(azmounts in EUR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose # 1o a variety of risks, Exposure to credit, interest rate, currency and liquidity risk arises in the normal course oE the Company's
business. The Company’s averall risk management policy foens on the wnpredictability of financial markets and seek (o minimize potential adverse sfecis on its finandial
performance.

The management considers there is no significant concentration of the following risks at the balance sheat date.

The procedures for assessing the risk are also shown betow:

Credit rigk

Credit risk is the risk of financial luss to the Company it a customer or counterparty to & financial instrument fails o meet ifs contractual obligatiosns, and arises:pringipally
from the loans and advances to customers.

For credil risk management reporting purposes, the Company considers and consokidates all el of credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor sk, seefor risk,
repayment rigk, etc.)

The Company's portfalis is reviewed on a regulary basis fov impainment provisions. There s a limited reconrse through the Overdraft Multivwrency Agreement between
the Campany (Bosrower) and Eurobank Cyprug Ltd. (Lender), which states that the aggrepate loss acorued by the Company (Boreower) in relation to its creditors
defaulting under corresponding loans will not exceed the lower of Eurg 2,080,000 or, 1% (ene pereent) of the outstanding amounts of correspoading loans, caloulaled
before tax and over the total term of the agresment.

Loans ond advances

Loans and advances are uet of provisions for impairment, The estimaled fair vatae of loans and advancss represents the discounted amount of estimated Fuure cash flows
expected ta be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current markel rates 10 determine fair valus,

‘The Campany takes on expasure to credit risk, which is the risk that & counterparty will bs unable to pay amounts in fiul when due,

Impairment provisions ase provided where there is objective evidence that the Cempany will not be able to-collect sll amowts due.

Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of & partioular indusiry segment that represeats a coheeniration in the Company's portfolio, eould result in evidence
that is different from those pravided for at the balance sheet date. Manageavent therefors carefully manages its exposure to crodit risk,

Exposure 1o eredit risk is managed through regular analysis of the sbility of borrowers (o meet interest and capital repeyment obligations.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed in pan by obtaining collateral and corparate and personal guarantees. The split of portfolio of the Conpany by industey is detaited
in below.

‘The Company has no geographical exposure to markets other than Romania,
Credit manitoring

The Company is aware of he state of the borrower's business and any ehange in its creditworthiness at 2/) times, a5 regular evaluation of financial stalements and of the
borrower’s business operations are performed.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING It B.V,

Notes to the Financial Statemeuts as &t December 31, 2015
{amounts in ELJR)

Credit risk (continved)

(Cash and cash gquivalents

There are no testriclions on Lhe avaitability of cash and cash equivalents. These ave readily available.

Coltateral

The Company employs a range of policies and practices o mirigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is taking of security for funds advances, which is a common
practice. The Company implements guidelines on the acceprability of specific classes of collateral or credil risk imitigation. The principal coltaleral types for loans and
advances are:

- Mortguges over residential properties;

- Charges over buginess asseis such a5 premises, inventory and accounts recsivable.

Louger-tenn finance and lending to corporate entities are geneeaily secured; mortgage loans are alsa scewred, while consumer loans to individuals are generally anscoured.
L addition, in order to minimize the credit loss the Company will seck additional eollsters] from the couriterparty as soon as fmpaimment indicators are noficed for the
relevant individual loans and advances.

- Maximum exposure to credit risk before coflateral held or ether credll enfiancements:

31.12.2045
Loans & advances 10 customers - principal outstanding® 314.038.630
Interest receivable 20.587.386
Other reccivables related to loans-manshly dministration fees 1.232.978
Less: allowance for impairment (2.000.000)
Net Loans and advances to customers 335,858,992
Other recgivables (Note 8) 1.371.482
Cash and cash equivalents 6.244 366
Ton a0
e e
31-12-2014
Loans & advances (o customers - principal cutstanding® 345.380.831
Interest receivable 22.013.204
Other reccivables related to loans-monthly administration fees 3.398.344
Less: allowance for impairment (2.000.000)
Net Loans sud advances to customers 368.801.379
Other receivables (Note 8) 54.167.208
Cash and cash equivalenis 7.862.730
Total 430.831.317

(°) Loans and advances to customers are afier any write downs performed due to limiied recourse against borrewings, which for 2015 is Euro 15,266,904 and for 2614 is
Eurp 38,015,509,

This write down is counterbalanced by the write-down of financing borrowings from Group company for the same amount (refer 1o note £13.

. Loens and advances

As al December 31, 2015 and 2014, loans and advances are summanized as follows:

31-12-2818 31/12/14
Netther past dee nor impaired 133.583.380 143.278.172
Past due but not impaired 46,687.881 53,062.642
Impaired - individually assessed 38,904,766 80.871.626
Impaired - collectively assessed 118.6R2.965 93,588.939
Gross Loans and advances to Custemers 337.858,992 370:861.373
Less: AHowance for impairment (2.0808,000) {2.000.000}
Net Loans end advences to customers 335.858.992 364,801,379
Impairments not yet charged under the limited recourse guarantee with Eurobank Cyprus Lid® -26.521.945 -19.535.747
Net loans and sdvances after impairments 369.337.047 349.205.632

*) Loan and advances to customers are to be written down by this amount in the fulure against borrowings, due to limited recourse guaranige (see note 11).
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ERB NEW EUROPE. FUNDING H B.V,

Nites to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2018
{amounts in EUR}

Credit risk (continued)

2. Loans and advances {continyed)

The wholesale and smal) buginess loans as at 31 Dacember 2015 are covered by colldterals at 100% and 87%, respectively (2014: 90% and 78%, respettively). Consumat
loans are not collateralized. Mortgage loans are ¢ollateralized at 95% (2014:96%).

Credit quality of Joans and advances to customers

Loans and advances 1o cuslomers are classified as “neither past due nor impaired”, “past due but not impaired” and “impaired”
Loans are reported as “neilher past due nor impaired” when no contractual payments are in arrears and thers are no other indications of finpairment

“Past due but not impaired” category includes loans with contractual payments overdue by 8l least one day, but which are nat iimpaired unless specific information
indicales to the contrary. This is typically when foans are In arvoars loss than 90 days past due for consamer snd small business exposuses, and less than 180 days past due
for mortgage and wholesale exposures, For foans in this category, although not considered impairgd, the Company may recognize ap impainmeiit pravision.

“Impgired” loans that are individually assessed comprize wholesale exposures as wel) as small business loans which earry an individual impsiment provision. Al other
relail impaired exposures carry a oollective impainnent provision.
The evidencs considered by the Company In determining that there is objective evidence of impairment is sct ont in Note 2 Impairment.

The tables below presoot the 1otal gross amownt, representing the maximum exposure fo credit risk gross of impainmen) allowance, of loans anid advances that are
classified as non impaired (i.o. “neilher past due nor impeired* and “‘past due bui ol impaired”) and those classified as impaired.

(a) Loars and advances neither past die ner inpalred

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans end advances that were nefther past due nor jmpaired st 31 December 2015 and 201 was assesaod by reference 1o the entity's
own standard grading system, The following information is based an thot system:

2015 2014
Acceptable- fow risk 133.583.380 143.278.172
Watch list . -
Tatal 133963380  143.278.172
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 1I B,V.

Notes to the Financial Sta as ai Dy ber 31, 2013

(amouniz:in EUR)

Credit risk (continued)

Loens and advances (continied)

1b) Loans and advances past dug, but not impaired

Consumer Mortgage Small business Whotesale 2018
Curvent
Past due up to 29 days 7.491.364 27,069,550 395.526 - 34.956.440
Past due 30 - 89 days 1.879.962 8.429.666 431,813 - 11.231.441
Past due 90 - 180 diys - - - . [V
Past duz more (fran |80 days - - - - 4
Totat 9.371.326 36.499.216 817.33% - 46,687,881
=}
Fair value of collateral - 28.267.241 771641 - 29.038.932
Consumier Mortgage Small business Whalesale 2014
Currsnt
Past due up te 29 days i1.741.950 26,426 664 236.063 18404677
Past due 30 - 89 daya 2.506.520 7.752.028 465,223 - 10.723.971
Past due 90 - 130 duys 1.497,533 = - 1.497.933
Past due more than 180 days - - - 2.436.261 2436261
Total 14240470 35.676.625 701,286 2438361 33007643
e "B ] — Oy
Fair value of eollatersl - 29.264.622 549,637 221891 32.032.560

(¢) Impaired loans and advances
(c1) Impaired loans and advances coilectively assessed

For collectively assessed accounts, loans are treated as impaired based on historical losa data for groups of loans with similar charbeteristics. The collectively assessed
loans and advances to customers before taking into consideration the eash flows from collateral held is presented betow:

2015
Consumer Mortgage Small Business Total
Collectively sssessed loans 34,086,292 53.747.632 30.849.041 115.682.965
Fair value of collateral - 37.510.211 21.829.061 §9.339.273
1014
Consemer Mortgage Small Business Total
Collectively assessed loans 38.587.927 54.969.713 31,299 $3.588.939
Fair vatue of collateral - 41,757,653 - 41,757.653
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNIMNG I1 B.V,

MNotes to the Financiat Statereents as at December 31, 2018
(amounts in EUR)

Credit rish (continued)

. Loans aud advances (continned)

(c2) Impaired foans and advances individually assessed

For individuglly assessed accounts, loans are ireated as impaired as sgon as thers is objective evidence tha! an impairment loss hag been incurved. The crifeda used by the
Compeny to determing that there is objeclive evidence of impairment inglude:

- known cash flow difficulties experienced by the barrower,

- overdue contraciunl payments of either principal or intersst;

- breach of Joan covenants or conditions;

— the probability that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other finaucinl reorganization;

- a downgrading in credit rating by an external credit wtmg agency.

During 2015 the impairment triggers and classification of exposures has been revised following integration of EBA concepts and categories regarding non-performing and
forborae loans which had an effect on {he assessment of the small business lodns,

The individualty assessed Ioans and advances o Gustomicars before taking into considetation the cash flows from collateral held. is presented below. The breakdown of ths
gross amount of individually assessed |loans and advances by classes is;

2015
Morigage Smali business Wholesale Total
Individually assessed loans - - 38.904.766 38,904,766
Fair value of collateral - - 41,841,734 41,841,734
2014
Mortgage Small business Whalzsate Total
Individually assessed loans 35,949 36.525.075 44.306.602 80.871 626
Fair value of collatoral 13.673 33.435.622 40.587.590 74,046,885

(d) Repossesed collarerals

Dusing 2009, the Company has repossesed collaterals emounting to EUR 104 thousand throngh his agent assigned for the admnistration of thage {oang, Banopost S.A.
These colletersls are recorded in the dgent’s books wntil the Company mstruets otherwise. Until sueh time, the Company recognized 2 receivabile from its agent (at the
auction vaiue of the coileteral), in corvespondence with @ veduction of the loan receivable.

During 2010-2015 there were no repossessed collateral.
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512

Notes to the Finanela) Statements az st Decenber 31, 2018
{emounts in EUR)

Credit risk {continued)

Loans and advances {eontinued)

fe) Concentration of credit risk exposure

Geagraphical Sectar

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNPING LI B.V.

The following table breaks down the Company’s main credit exposure st their gross cArTying amounts, as caiegorized by the geographicat sectors of our counterparties:

Loans and advances 10 cusiomers:

Cansumer
Mortgage
Small businesses
Wholesale
Cash and cash equivalents
Otivar Assels
Total
Loans and advances 1o custome:s;
Consurser
Mortgage
Small businesses
Whaolesale
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Aszets
Total
Indusiry sector

2018

64.518.278
197.483.461
36.952.487
38.904.766
6.244.566
1371483

345.475.041

2014

80.886.233
128.045.566
45.043.459
46.826.121
7.862.730
54.167.208

432.831.317

The following table breaks down the Company's main aredit exposure at their gross cartying amounts, as categorized hy the indusiry sectors of our counterparties:

Loans and advances to customers:
- Congumer
- Morigage

- Smali businessea

- Whalesate

Cash and cash equivalents

Other Assess

Total

Commerce Privete

and sgrvices individusts _ Manufacturing _ Construetion Other industries 2018
- 64.518.278 - - 64.518.278
- 197.483 461 - - - 197.483.461
23,205.765 - 6:748,102 5.547.374 1.451.346 36,952,487
10.490.504 - 5.133.335 20.169.790 3.111.137 38,904,766
6.244.567 - - - - 6.244.567
1.371.483 - - - - 1.371.483
41.312.3t9 262,001,739 £1.881.437 25.717.064 4,562.483 345,475,042
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING If BV,

Notes to the Fi ial Stat iis as at D ber 31, 2015
(zmounts in EUR)

Credit risk (continued)

. Loans and advances (confinued)

Commerce Private
and services individuals Manufacturing _ Constructions CHber industries 2014

Loans and advances 1o oustomers:

- Consumer B 80.886.233 - - - 80.886.233

- Mortgage - 198.045.566 - - - 198,045 566

- Swnall businesses 28.571.061 8.456.33) 6.524.93] 1.491.134 43.043.459

- Whilezale 13.471.280 - 6.413.424 22,820,625 4,120,792 46.826.121

Cash and cash equivaleats 1.862.730 - - - - 7.862.230
Other Assets 16.266.131 17,120,623 6.205.628 11.323.584 ) 3.251.242 54,167,208
Total 66,171,202 296.052.422 2).0075.385 40.669.140 B.863.168 432,831,317

(f) Fair value of financal assety and habities

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy as at 31 Decemmiber 2015 based on whether the inputs to the Fair values are observable or unobservable, are as follows:

a) Level 1 - Financial instrunents measured based on quoted prices in active markets for identical financial mstrometns thal an entity ean access at the measirement date,
A market is considered active when quoted prives are readily and regularly avallable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industey group, pricing service, or Tegulatory
ageney and tepresent actuslly and regularly occurring transactions. These include actively quoted debt instnuments, equity and derivative instruments traded on exchanges,
as well as mutual Fands and unit-linked product that have regulnrly and frequently published quotes.

b) Level 2 - Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques wilh the folfowing inpts: i) quoted prices for similar financial instrumenty in active markets, if)
quoted prices for identical or similar financial instruments in markets that are nol wotive, iif) inpufs pther than quated prices that are direotly ty indireotly chservable,
mainly interest rales and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, forward exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and implied volatilities obigined
from intemationally recopnized markel data providers and iv) may also include other unobservabte inputs which arc insignificant (o the entire fair value measurement.

¢) Level 3 - Financial instraments measured using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs, When developing unobservable inputs, best information
available is used, including own data, while at the sasme time markel participants’ assumptions are reflected (¢.g, assumptions about risk). Level 3 financial instruments
include unguoted equity instruments.

(&) Fair value of finemcial asseis and tishilities

The foltowing table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of financisl assets and liabilities which are nol earried at fair value or the halance sheet, analysed by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement {8 included;

31/12115

Net carrying
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value 1

Financial assets
Loans and advances io customers * - 291.780.553 29{,780.553 335,858,992
Total finnncial nasels

31712714

Net carrying
Level § Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value t

Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers - - 377.169.427 377.169.427 368.801.379

Tolal financial assels
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.Y,

Nates te the Financisl Statements as st Dacember 31, 2015
{amounts in EUR)

Credit risk {continued)

Loans and advences (continued)

‘The assumptions and methodologies underlying the caloulation of fidr valuss of financial instruments not camied at fair value on the balance sheet date are in fine with
thoso used to caloulate the fair values for financial instniments carried at fair valus and are a5 follows:

Loans and advances to customers, for loans and advances to customers quated market prives are not avaitable as there are no schive markets where these instruments are
traded. The fir values are eslimated by discounting furure cash fows over the time period they are expected to be recovered, using appropriate risk-adjusted rates. Loans
are grouped into homogenous assets witl similar characteristics, as monilored by Management, such as producl, borrower type end delinquency status, in order 10
improve Ihe accuracy of the cstimated valustion outputs. [n estimating fulure cash fows, the Group makes assumptions on expected prepayments, product spréads and
timing of callateral realization. The discount rates incorparate inputs for expected cradit losses and interest rates, 43 appropriate.

For other financial instruments which are short-term of re-price a1 fiequent intervats (cash, due to banks eto), the carrying amounts represent reasonable approximations of
fair values.

The following lable presents the Hnanciat Nabilities that have & short term maturity (less than 1 month) for which the assumption is that the carying amount approximates
their fair value:

31/12/2618 31/12/2014

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 322,304.358 322.304.358 409.646 838 409.646.838
Other Liabihties 3345471 3345471 3.781.809 3.781.809
Tarsl financial liabiliaties 325,649,829 325,649,829 413,428,647 415.418.647
Market risk
The Company takes on expasure to markel risk, which is the risk that the fair value or furure ¢ash flows of a financial instrunent will te b of clianges {n

market prices. Market risks arige from open positions in imleres! rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific movements angd
chenges in the tevel of volatility of market rates of prices such as interest tates, foreign exchiange rates and equity prices,

fnterest rate risk

The risk that fiture cash flows of a financial instnoment will fuctuate because of changes in arket infesest rates, Loan assels and loan Fabilities are ondertakex back 1o
back on terms that both relate to the sae variable Guribor or Libor rate. The risk is fully compensated by this balance and kence there is no sensitivity risk to a changs in
tnterest rate.

Fareign exchange risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk thal assets or liabilities in foreign curmencics will {luctuats [n value due to exchangs rate fluctustions,
Sensitivity anslysis

The sensitivity of the Income Statement is the effeci of the assumed changes jn foreign exchanges rates on the nel income for one year, Sensitivity analysis used for
monitoring market risk do nat represent warst case scenario, The effect on the income stalement as & result of parallel shilt in yicld curve is nil. An analysis of the
Company's sensilivity to an increase or decrease in FX rates {assuming constant baladce sheet position) is as follows:

Senstivily of Income Stalement

218 31/12/14
gatn/{foss) grinkloss)
Fareimn exchange
10% depreciation of functional currency (EUR) over foreign currencies 65377.389 1,243.852
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 11 B.V.

Notes to the Fi 18] 8 nig 03 &t D ber 31, 2015
(amouwmts in EUR)

Liquidity risk

The Managemen! considers that the liquidity risk is Jimiteg since the Gronp ensures avaifability of needed funds.

The table below presents the cash flow paysble by the Company under financial labilities by remaining contractual maturitios &t the balance shect date. The amounls

disclosed in the 1able are contraciual undiscounted cash flows.

Coniractyal undiscounted cash flows

3U/12/13 3112004
Up io | month:
Borrowings from jroup companies 322.304.358 409.646.838
Interest payabie (o group companies 174,221 1.565,558
Other payables 3.171.25¢ 2.216.251
325649.829 413.428.647
1-3 month;
Borrowings from group companies - -
Interest paysble to group campanies -
Other payables - -
3-12 month:
Borrowings ffom group companies -
Interest payable to proup companies =
Other paysbles
Toial:
Borrowings from group companies 322.304.358 409.646.838
Interest payable to group companie 174221 1,565,558
Other payables 3.171.256 2216.251
325.649.829 413,428.647

Capital mansgement

The Company's main cbjectives when managing capital, is to safsguard the Company's ability 1o continue as a going concern 50 that it can continue 10 provide retums for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Company i6 not required to comiply with any capital requirements set by the regulsiors,

Capital consists of issued and paid up eapital, share premium and oflser reserves. There have been no marerial changes i the Compeny’s management of capital during the

year,

The capital of the Company is presented below:

2018 1014

Issted and paid-up oapital 20.000 20.000
Share premium 11.980.000 11,980,000
Other resesve 6.283.424 5,880,289
Total equity 18,283,424 17,680,889
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Noies ta the Fi il Staf ts us at I ber 31, 201%
(amounts in EUR)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTEMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company makes estimales and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year, Estimales and judgmenis are
continually evalusted and based on historical experience and ofler factors, tneluding expeoations of future events that are believod to be reasonsble under the
cir . The estimates and assumptions that have a significant dsk of causing a material adjustment fo the carrying amoumts of assets and Habilities within the next
finaacial year arc addressed belaw.

a) Impairment losses o loans and advances

The Company reviews ils loan portfolios to assess impaitment at least on a half yeardy basis. In detennining whether an impainmnent foss shoult be recorded in (he income
statement, the Company makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimaled future cash flows from
a portfatio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that porifolio, This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or natienal or local sconomie sonditions that correlate with defaults on assels in the group, Management
uses estimates based on historfeal loss experience for assets with credit risk characlerisiics and objective evidence of fmpairment similar to these in the portiotio whea
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used tor estimating both the amount and timing of fulure cash flows are reviewsd regularly €o reduce
any differences between logs estimates and actual loss experience.

An Overdraft Multicurrency agresment dated July (1, 2008 bebween (he Company (Borrower) and Burobank Cyprus Lid. (Lender) was concluded. There is a limited
reeourse through the Overdraft Multicurrency Agresment which states that the aggregate foss acerued by the Company (Borrower) in relation 1o its ¢reditors defaudting
under corresponding loans will not excead the lower of Eura 2,000,000 or 1% (one per ¢tnt} of the outstanding amounts of correspanding loans, ealeulated before tax and
over the total term of the this agreement.

b) Uncertain tax pasition

‘The Company's uncerain lax positions are d by manap al the end of each reporting peried. Liabilities are recorded for income tax positions that arg
determined by management s more likefy than not to resull in additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the tax authoritics, The assessment is
hased on the interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by Lhe end of the reporiing period, and any knowm court or other rulings on such
issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest und taxes other than on ingome are resopnized based on management's hest estimate of the expenditure required to seitle the
obligations at the end of the reporting period.

¢) Deferred income tax asset recognition.

The recognized deferred tax usset represents income taxes recoverable through future deductions from taxable profits, and is recorded in the incomis slatement, Deferred
income 1ax assels are racorded to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit is probable. The future taxable profits and the amount of tax beriefits that are
probable in the futwre are based on a medium-term business plan prepared by management and extrapolated results thereafter, The business plan is based on managemeni
expectations that are believed (o be reasonable under the circumstanees.

d) Fair value of financial assets and liabilitios

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on carrent bid prices (financial assels) or offer prices (financial liabilities). If there is no active market
for a financial instrument, the Company establishes fair valus using valuation technigues. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash {low
analysis and other valuation techniques commenly used by market participants. The vatuation models reflect current market conditions al the measurement date which
may not be representative of market conditions either before or after the measurement date. As at (he balance sheet date, management has roviewsd its models (o ensure
they appropriately reflect current market conditions, including the relative liquidity of the market and credit spreads.
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LOANS & ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Consumer loans®

Mortgage loans®

Small Bussiness Borrowingy Corporate loans®
Total loans to clients - gross?®

Less: allowanee for impairment (6wn rigk)

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 11 B.V.

Notes te the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2015
(amowits in EUR)

Tmpairments not yet charged under the linited recourse gunrantes with Earobank Cyprus Led®®

YRS 3141214
64.518.278 80.886.233
197.483 461 198.045 566
75.857.253 91.869.580

337.838.992 376.801:379
{2.600.000) (2.060.008)

335.858.992 368.801.379

(26.521.945) (19.535.747)

309.337.047 349.265.632

*) Loans and advances lo castoiness are after any write downs performed dug to limited recourse against borrowings, which for 2015 i Eure 15,266,904 and for 2014 i
Euro 58,015,509, This write down is counterbalanced by the write down of financing borrowings frout Group Company for the same emount {refor to note |13,

*%) Loan and advances 1o cuslosmers are to be written down by this amount in the future against borrowings; due Lo limiled recourse guarantee (sse note 11).

Movement in write downs limited recourse;
Opening balance

Write downs performed during the year
Cloging balance as at year end

Carrens Assets:

Loan repaymenis due:
Up to  month

1-3 months

4-12 months

Non-Current Assels:
1-5 years
Over § years

31/12115 311214
152.937.592 94,922,083
15.266.904 58015308

168.204.496 152.937.392

3128 312114
3.120.521 3.316.239
6.258.372 6.854.174

41.184.597 31.285483
50.563.490 41.455.896
31/12/15 31214

100,835,643 129.937.201
184.463.859 197.408.282

285.295.502 327.345483

Loans bear interest at 1 menth or 3 mosith Euribor/Litor plus & spread andd acoording to the Master Receivables Sale and Purchiase Agreements.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I B.V.

Notes t the Pinancist $i ts 8s at ber 31, 2015
(amounts in BUR)

LOANS & ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS {tontinued)

Movements in provisions in 2015 and 2014 for inipsirment of loans and interest receivable are:

Consumer Morignge Sraall business Corporate
Type of loan: loans loans lsans [oany Tatal
Opening balanee as at fanuary 1, 2015 1.646.989 314,533 38.478 - 2.0060.000
Provision charge / release for the year {including collection fees) (92,560) 107 483 (14.923) - -
Disposal of loan portfolio . - - - -
Otlrer movements - - - i -
Foreign exchange loss (gain) - - - - -
Closing balanee as at December 31 L2015 1.554.429 422016 23,555 ~ 2.000.008
Consumes Mortgage Small business Corporate

Type of loan: loans loans loans loans Total
Opening balance ag ot January 1, 2014 1.763.742 170,907 65.351 - 2.000,000
Provision charge / release for (he year (including coliection fees) (116.753) 143,626 {26.873) - -
Disposal of loan portfalio " - -
Cther movements -
Foreign exchange loss (gsin) - - - - -
Closing balance as at December 31, 2014 1.646.989 314,533 38478 - 2.000.000
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Description K37)97) 14 3112/14
Receivable from repossessed collaterals 97,685 08.528
Other receivabies 9.457 4,606
Receivable from Eurobank Cyprus fad. 1.264.020 54.064.074

1.371.482 §4.167.208

The tolal w/d EUR 58.615.509 as of YE14 are consisting of: wid performad in 2014 of amount EUR 4,007,602 counterbalanced by w/d of fuancing borrowings from
Group company (Cyprus) as disclosed in Note 1 £, plus w/d booked in 2014 of amount EUR 54.007 907 apainat receivables fram Cyprus as disclosed in Nots 8,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Description 3L/1214 3171214

Duge [tom banks/ewrent accounts 2:463.129 3.077.23%

Due from banks/deposits placed with banks 3.781.438 4785491
6.244.566 7.862.730

There are ne restrictions on the availability of cash and cash equivalents, These are readily available,

EQUITY
The Company's suthorized share capitel amouats to EUR 90,000 and consists of 90,000 oedinary shares with & nominal value of EUR 1 each.

As al December 31, 2015, 20,000 shares were issued and futly paidsup. The movemenls in the Equity we refer to the Statemenl of Equity on page 9 of this report.

ERB New Europe Funding 1 B.V. i5 fully controlled and owned by ERB New Europe Holding B.V., 2 wholly owned subsidiary of Eurobank Frgasias 5.A., a bank
Incarporsted ia Greece and listed on the Athens Stock Exchange.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I B,V,

Notes to the Financial Statements as at Decomber 31, 2015

(amounts in EUR)
BORROWINGS FROM GROUP COMPANY
31/12418 31/1244
Financing borrowings from Eurebank Cyprus Lid. 391.579.179 413,654 440
Write-downs due 1o limited recourse against loans and advances o customess {69.274.812) (4.007.602)

322,304,358 ADD.646.838

An Overdrafl Multicurrency Agreement dated Fuly 11, 2008 between the Company (Borrower) and Eurobank Cyprus Ltd. (Lender) was concluded, The atiribution of
impaimmient on loans & advances lo bomowers relates 1o the impaiments thal managenient hiave estimaied on the loan portfolio. Under the OverdeaR Multicurvency
Agreement the credit risk of the portfolic exceeding BUR 1,999,348 is bom by Eurobank Cyprus Lid., therefore ii§ amount Kas been adjusted on the financing
borecwing,

According 10 the agreement the burrawings are repriced and renewed on » monthly basis. Borrowings heor interest at | month or 3 mopth Euribor/Libor plys a spread and
accarding to the Multicurrency Agreement. Based on Facility Agreement, borrowings bear interest at Endbor/Libor plus a spread for certain interest periads of up te six

maonths untif they are repriced.

The borrowings are matched with the leans and advances to customers (note 7).

INTEREST PAYABLE TO GROUF COMPANY

3132115 31/t2/14
Eurobank Cyprus Lid., Cyprus 174.221 1.565.558
174221 1.565.558
Repayments are due within 1 month.
OTHER PAYABLES
31/12/15 31/82/14
Payabies to Bancpost §.A 2.081.640 1.006.024
Payables to Burolife ERB Asigurari de Viata S.A. 190.779 74,634
Payables to sundry lawyers 2 409
VAT payable ~ C
Accrued expenses 30.000 35.000
Other payables 848808 £.100.184
3.171.230 2.216.251
INTEREST INCOME
11/15-31/1318 1A438/12/14
Interest income on loans and advances 20.404.777 24,354.517
Tnterest related income 3401911 4.023.463
Interest related fees (1.430.170) (1,532.584)
22.376.318 26.862.396
INTEREST EXPENSE
VI/15-31/12/15 1/1714-31/12/14
Interest expense borrowings from group Company 21.920.058 26.191.211
Bank inlerest expenses 15,788 8.638
21.935.846 26,199,849
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I1 B.V.

Noides to the Financial Ststements as ai December 31, 2018
(amounts in EUR)

OPERATING COSTS

Management, domiciliary and accounting fees
Occasional consultancy fees

Non-deductible VAT

Other

TAXATION

In 2015 and 2014, thiz ttem can be detafted as follows:

Result before taxation

Less: Foreign exchange gale/(loss)

Less: non- lnxable operating incoms
Taxsble profit

Coarporaie income tax expense for the year

FHffective carporate income fux rate
The movemens in the taxation are as follows:

Opeuning balance

Lstimate tax charge for the yéar

Teax charge provious years

Payments made

Amounis refunded by the Tax Authorities
Interest expense related to CIT

Closing batance

The nominal Corporale income wd in the Netherlands is 20% for the first EUR 200,000 and the remaining taxable resull 25%.
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LNAS3112/15 11/14-31712014
7917 75.000

169.177 18.350

62912 46,976

327.322 274497

572.12% 414.823
ViNS-31/12/15  11H4-31/13/14
439.829 1,819,566
1.458.837 185,999
(LT12.197) (1.707.951)

185 AT0 297614

37.294 64.404

§,48% 3.54%

2018 2014

478219 334515
+37.204 64404

77,500 207.708

-60.212
458213 478219




ERB NEW EURGPE FUNDING 11 B.V,

Netes 19 the Financial Ststements as af December 31, 2015
(amounts in EUR)

RELATED PARTI{ES

Partics are considered to be related if one party has the abilfity to sontrol the other party or excrcise significant influence over the other party in iaking financial or
operation dacisions,

The Company's immediate parent and conirlling entity is ERB New Burope Holding B.V..a wholly owned subsidiary of Burobank Ergasias 8.A (the Bank) which is
listed in the Athens Stock Exchange.

In November 2015, fellowing the completion of the Bank's share capital increase, filly covered by investors, institational and others the peteentage of the Bank's
ordinary shares with voling rights held by the Hellenic Financial Stability Fund (HFSF) deereased from 35.41% to 2.38%.

Despite Lhe aforementioned significant decrease of its percentage, the HFSF s still congidered to have significant influstce over the Bank. In paniculer, in the context of
the Law 3864/2010, as in force, HFSF exercises its voting rights in the Bank™s General Assembly only for decisions concerning the améndmeni of the Bank’s Articles of
Associalion, including the increase or decrease of the Bank's capial or the granting of a corresponding authorization to the Bank’s Board, decisions concerning the
mergers, divisions, canversions, revivals, eatension of duration or dissolution of the Biank, the transfer of assets, or any other fssue requinivg approval by an inereased
majority as provided for in Company Law 2190/1920, In addition, the Bank has snlered inio a new Relationship Framework Agreement (RFA) with the HFSF on 4
December 2015 replacing the previous one, signed on 26 August 2014,

The related parties considered for reporting purposes comprize of Bancpost $.A., Eurolife ERB Asipusari Generale $.A.. Euralife ERB Asigurari de Viata S.A. Eurobank
Privale Bank Luxembourg §.A_, Eurobank Cyprus Ltd. and ERB New Europs Funding 111 B. V. which are entities controlled by Eurobark Ergasias 5.A.

The related party ransactions the Company i involved in are ineluded in e Ralance Sheet and koome Statement and further distlosed in this note,

A number of transactions are entered info with related parties in the normial course of the business. These include loans, deposils and foreign cureency ramsactions and
avquisition of ather serviegs. The volwmnnes of related party ransactions, sutstanding balances af yar-end, and relating expense and income for the year are a5 follows;

The related party iransactions that refer 1o the Income Statement can be specified as follows:

2018 2014
Interest expense borrowings Burobank Cyprus (21.935 846} {26.199.849)
Interest expense borrowings Private Bank Lixembourg - -
Bank fees Bancpost SA (24,437} (12.669)
Bank fees Private Bank Luxembourg - (9.876)
Expenges relating {0 {nterest income on loans & advances Bancpost SA {1.197.935) (1.246.861)
Expenses relating to inlerest fncome on foans & advances Ewrolite ERB Insurance (232.235) (105:279)
Interest income Eurabank Cyprus Ltd 69 11504
Interest income Bancpost SA 3,105 10,999
Operating expenses Eurobank Property Services SA Romanin - (L700)
Ovcrating expenses Eurobank Propenty Services SA Athens (4.600)

3387379 (7555421

The related party ransactions that refer (o the Balance Sheet can be specified as follows:

2018 2044
Current accounts with banks Bancpost SA 2317317 2 908.750
Current accowms with banks Eurobank Cyprus 73.391 62.606
Current accounts with banks Private Bank Luxembourg - 92.870
Term deposits with other banks Bancpost SA 1,704,732 2 708,835
Term deposits with other banks Eurobank Cyprus 2.076.726 2,076,656
Loans & advances to cuslomers (prepaid origination fees) Bancpost SA 220.250 470,647
Other receivables Bancpost SA 97 805 98.528
Qther receivables Eurobank Cyprus 56.166 54.064.074
Term loans from banks Eurobank Cyprus Lid (322.478.580) (411.212.396}
Other payables to Group Company (2.076.546} (1.186.0443)

{318.008.960) {349.915.474)
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 1L B.Y,

Notws 1o (he Finaocisl Sintamenty a9 st Decembar 31, 2013
tamounts @ ELR}

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

No off befarce sheot comraciuet comasitracats o oblgaicns, nffscting tho flsancie] surtessets, have octived o daie.

OTHER INFORMATION ON GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year nader revlow. the Compairy did not hisve sny employcos, Honor, it did siot pay ey wegss end reletod social secwity.
The sudit fes of BUR 30,000 (2014: BUR 35,000) comprizes the fous of indepondent extornal auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers

Accoeisngs N.V. foe the stanutory aodit ol ihe finsncial stelements,
'Tho external isdepondent autiitor ke nol chacged sny Faes relsting Lo othor avsursnce mistad secvicss, tox oF sy other coumuling sorvices,

DIRECTORS

Dmu,memmmmmwmmcmymnwmnm.mmedmmmmmmwmmumm
Cearpacy hee e Supstviaory Direstory,

As per Aoguut 17, 2018, Mr, 8. vaas dor Wowr waid Mr, MoAH, Martis v resignad s managing dirociors of the Compeny, shd a# pie ssi daie Mir, BLR, Jereseos-and
Mr. R. Wenss have beon sppodatod 24 macaging dirsctos of the Company.

A Taassomd AR R. Wesmnmi
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Qther information

Statutory provision regarding appropriation of Result

Aj

e

Subject to the provisions under Dutch law that no dividends can be declared until all losses have been cleared, the othet ressrves are
at the disposal of the shareholder in accordance with Article 22 of the Company's Articles of Assosiation.

Furthermore, Dutch law prescribes that any profit distribution may only be made to 15e extent that the shareholders’ equity exceeds
the amount of the {ssued capitel and the legal reserves,

rigtion of rexukt

The Board of Managing Directors proposes to add the net profit for the year to the sccumulated profits, This proposed allocation of
result has been incorporated in the financial statements, and is subject to the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders,

Position of Ewrobank Group

Macroeconomic environment

In 2015, the macroeconomic ¢nvironment in Greece has been very challenging for the Greek banking system. In the First haif of the
year, the prolonged uncertainty relating to an agreenent with the Eitrozone partners over the implementation of the required reforms
for the conclusion of the Second Economic Adjustement Program, the unsuceessful expiration of the former, the tightened liguidity
conditions due to the financing problems of the Greek State and the significant deposit outflows — already observed from late 2014 -
led to the imposition of restrictions in banking transactions (cupital controls) together with a temporary bank holiday on 28 June
2015, In mid - August the Greek Government reached a final agreement with its European partners on a new 3-year European
Stability Mechanism (ESM) program — the Third Economic Adjustment Program (TEAP) - with 1 ca € 86 bn financing envelope and
a series of reforms aiming to restore fiscal sustainability, safeguard financial siability, enbance growth, competitivencss and
investment snd develop & modern state and public administration. The Greek Government managed 10 complete two sets of prior
actions from the program at the end of Novembér aind December 2015, By mid - December 2015, the sysiemic banks’
recapitalization was completed with only ca € 5.4 bn used fram the initial buffer of up to € 25 bn. The unused funds were subtracted
from the ESM loan, reducing it to ca € 64.5 bn as of the end of January 2016,

In the first months of 2016, the maoroeconomic environment in Greece has remainied chellenging for the Greek banking system.
Following the ongoing negotiations with its European partners during the last months, Greece has successfully concluded the 1st
review of the Third Eeonomic Adjustment Program (TEAP), which permitied the disburserent of the first sub-tranche of € 7.5 bn
from the second Mmstaliment of the European Stability Mechanism (ESM) loan on 21 June 2016, allowing the country to cover its
debt servicing needs and clear a part of the State’s arvears 1o the private sector. Accordingly, the European Central Bank (ECB)
decided the reinstatement of the waiver for the instruments issued by the Heflenic Republic and the improvement of the advance
rates for providing Eurosystem financing with Pillar I guarantees as collateral, while the participation of Greek Government Bonds
in ECB’s Quantitative Easing (QE) program will be examined at a later stage conditional om the implementation of the 2nd review
and the results of the Debt Sustainability Analysis that the ECB is expected to conduct after the implementation of the short term
debt relief measures for Greece. The latter are in accordance with the roadmap of debt relief agreed in the 25 May 2016 Burogroup.
The completion of the 15t review helped in reducing the short term uncertainty surrounding the economic outfook and conlributed to
further refaxation of capital controls, as of 22 July 2016. This, aleng with the mabilization of European Union (EU) funding to
support domestic investment and job creation and the decisive implemeniation of the reforms agreed in the context of the ESM
program, wauld facilitate the restoration of confidence in the prospects of the Greek economy and the further stabilization of the
domestic environment, which are necessary conditiens for the resumption of positive econamic growth.
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Other infor mation

Pasition of Eurobank Group (continued)

Currently, the main risks and uncertainties are associated with a) the impact on the level of economic activity from additional fiscal
meagures included in the key prior actions of the Ist review of the TEAP, b) possible delays in the implementation of the reforms’
agenda in onder to meet (he next targets and milestones of the TEAP including the timely completion of the 2nd review schieduled for
early December 2016, c) the timing of a fulf ift of restrictions in the frec movement of capital and the respeetive impact on the Tevel
of ecanomic activity , d) # possible detarioration of the refugee crisis and the impact on the internal economy and &) the geopolitical
conditions in the broader region and the external shocks from & slowdown in the global economy.

Liquidity risk

In accordanee with the agreement with the Eoropean partness, the authorities are committed ta preserving sufficient liguidity in the
banking system, as long as Greece meets its obligations under the ESM program. The deeisive implemenistion of the measurcs
agreed in the context of the new ESM program permitted ECB to reinstate the waiver for the instruments issued by the Hellenic
Republic and decrease the haircuts applied for Pillar If goarantees, These developments have enabled Greek banks to reduce their
dependence on the expensive Emergency Liquidity Assistance (ELA) mechanism and inerease their liquidity buffers; The
stabilization of the macroeconomic environment and z recovery of the domestic economic seatiment will facilitate o faster return of
deposits in the banking system and the further re-aecess to the markets for liquidity.

In the first nine months of 2016, Eurobank Ergasias 5.A. [ the “Bank™) has nranaged to reduce it dependence on Barosystem
funding mainly through the increase in repo transactions in the interbank market, the selective assets deleveraging, the utilization of
a part of foreign subsidiaries” surplus lHquidity and to some extent by deposit inflows.

Solvency risk

On 31 October 2015, the ECB announced the results of the comprehensive assessment (CA) based on which, a shortfali of € 0.3 bn
in baseline scenario against 9.5% Common Equity Tier | {CET1) threshold and € 2.1 bn in adverse scenario against 8% CETI
threshold, the lowest shortfall across Greek banks, was identified for the Bank. Following the CA results and in line with the new
recapitalization framework introduced by Law 4340/2015, the Bank proceeded to & capital increase of € 2,039 million, which was
covered exclusively from the markets, As a tesult, the Group strengthened further its capitad base and its CET1 ratio stoed 4t 17% at
the end of December 2015.

Notwithstanding the direct and mdirect exposure of the banking system to sovereign risk, the successful complelion of the Bank’s
and other Greek systemic banks’ recapitalization process constituted a key milestone for rebuilding trust in the banking system and in
the econemy in general.

The Group continues implementing its medium term internal capital generating plan, which includes initiatives generating or
releasing CET capital andfor reducing risk weighted assets One of the key areas of focus remains the aclive management of non-
performing loans, taking advantage of the Group™s intemnal infrastructure and the important legislative changes that have taken or are
expected to take place, aiming to substantially reduce their stock in due course, The Group's Common Equity Tier 1 {CET{) ratia
stood at 17% at the end of June 2016 and the net profit attributable to shareholders amounted to € 106 million for the peried ended
30 June 2016.

The Board of Directors, taking into consideration the above favtors relating to the adequacy of the Group™s capital position and its
anticipated continued access to Eurosystem funding over the foreseeable fulure, and despite the existing uncertainties relating to the
macrogconomic environment in Greece, has been satisfied that the financial statements of the Compeny can be prepared on a going
concern basis
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Other information

Post balange sheet events

Legistation on the conversion of CHF denominated loans to Romanian Lexn

On 1B October 2016, the Romanian parliament unanimousty passed & bili that allows borrowers to convert Swiss franc-denominated
loans into local currency ‘Leu’ using the exchange rate prevailing on the dale they were originated. The abpve law provision has not
come into foroe yet. The Romanian Constitutional Court (RCC) is eurrently reviewing its constitutionality, following the relovant
request by the government and the date for issuing the decision had been established for 23 November 2016 and subseiquenly
postponed to 18 January 2017, Eurobank Group awaits the decisions and the reasoning of the RCC and reserves its right 1o assess the
legral possibility to seck recourse fo the supranational European Court of Justice.

Romanian Legisiation ou the discharge of debt obligations (*Dafio In Solutum’)

In May 2016, Law 77/2016 on the discharge of debt obligations (‘Datio in Solutum®) came inte force in Romanis, In particular, the
said law provides for the discharge in full and under certain preconditions of the loans coniracted by individuals and secured by
mortgage arrangements fry ‘payment in kind® through the transfer of the mortgaged property,

According to the press releases issued by the Romanian Constitutional Court (RCC), on 25 October 2016 the RCC decided that
certain provisions of the law are against the Constitution, The decisions of RCC (including the reasoning) are expected to be
published in the Official Guzette of Romania, and Eurobank Group awaits the decisions and the reasoning of the RCC and reserves
its right to assess the legal possibility to seek recourse to the supranational European Court of Justice.

Sub-participation agreement between Bancpost 8.A. and ERB New Europe Funding I B.V.
On 08.02.2016 and 26.04.2016, two Sub-participation agreements were signed between Bancpost S.A. and ERB New Furope
Funding I B.V. for leans’ portfolio originated by Bancpost §.A. totally amounting to EUR 55 mil.

Above mentioned post balance sheet events do not affect the financial position of the Company as at 31.12.2015.

Iudependent auditar's report

Reference is made 10 the independent auditor's report hereinafter.,
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Independent auditor’s report

To: the general meeting of ERB New Europe Funding IT B.V.

Report on the financial statements 2015

Our opinion

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of ERB New Europe Funding IT B.V. as at 31 December 2015, and of its result and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Finaneial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2015 of ERB New Europe Funding I B.V,,
Amsterdam (‘the company’).

The financial statements comprise:

» the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015;

. the following statements for 2015: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows;

. the notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements
is EU-IFRS and the relevant provisions of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing,

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the section ‘Our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements’ of our report.

We are independent of ERB New Europe Funding II B.V. in accordance with the ‘Verordening inzake
de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten’ (ViQ) and other relevant
independence requirements in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the 'Verordening
gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA),

We believe that the andit evidenee we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Ref.: en392675

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N. V., Fascinatio Boulevard 350, 3065 WB Rotterdam, P.0. Box 8800,
3009 AV Rotterdam, The Netherlands
T: +31(0) 88 792 00 10, F: +31 (0) 88 792 95 33, unow.pc.nl

'PwC' i the brand undsr which PricewaterhouseCoopers Accoustants NV (Chamber of Commercs 34180285), PricswalsrhouseCoopers Belastingadviseurs N V
{cm«dﬂmmH1WI.deiuhmcmmMuwyNVtChmtbcrq!Commaﬂmm}.:‘-‘ houseCoopens Campll Bervices BV
(Chamber of Commarce 61414408), Pri houseCoor Pansl Act | & Services BV (Chamber of Commerca S4228388),

Pl Coopers BV (Chamber of © 34180208) and other companies operaie and provide sarvicss Thess services ora govemed by Genaral Tenma
and Conditions (‘sigamana vantwaarden, which inciuda provisiona regarding our lishiflly Purct by these comp are govemad by Genaral Terms and Contktiony
of Purchase (‘sigemene inkoog ) At wwaw pwe nl more ditared information on these companiss is avalisbla. Including thess Ganera! Terms and Condiions
and the Gengral Terma and Conditions of Purchase, which hava glso besn filed et the Amstardam Chambar of Commerce
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Responsibilities of management

Management is responsible for:

o the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS
and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the report of the
managing directors in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code; and for

cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern in the financial
statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements,

A more detailed description of our responsibilities is set out in the appendix to our report,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Our report on the report of the managing directors and the other

information

Pursuant to the legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our

obligation to report about the report of the managing directors and the other information):

. we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the report of the
managing directors, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part g of
Book 2 of this code, and whether the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch
Civil Code has been annexed:

. we report that the report of the managing directors, to the extent we can assess, is consistent
with the financial statements.

m, 31 January 2017

Pri terhouseCoopers Accountants NV,

M.P.A. Corver RA

ERB New Europe Funding Il BV, — Ref.: eogo267s
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Appendix to our auditor’s report on the financial statements
2015 of ERB New Europe Funding II B.V,

In addition to what is included in our auditor’s report we have further set out in this appendix our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements and explained what an audit involves.

The auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have exercised professional Jjudgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout
the audit in accordance with Duteh Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence

consisted, among other things, of the following:

U Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the intentional override of internal control,

o Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. ’

@ Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

“ Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going-concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events and/or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report and
are made in the context of our opinion on the financial statements as a whole. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit,

ERB New Europe Funding I B.V. - Ref.: €0392675
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